
 

 
 

 
 

AGENDA PAPERS FOR 
 

TRAFFORD COVID-19 PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT BOARD 
 

Date: Wednesday, 30 June 2021 
 

Time:  10.00 am 
 

Place: Virtual meeting  
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCjwbIOW5x0NSe38sgFU8bKg 

   
 

 
A G E N D A   PART I Pages  

 
1.  ATTENDANCES   

 
To note attendances, including officers, and any apologies for absence. 
 

 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
Members to give notice of any interest and the nature of that interest relating 
to any item on the agenda in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct. 
 

 

3.  MINUTES   
 
To receive and, if so determined, to approve as a correct record the Minutes 
of the meeting held on 16th June 2021. 
 

1 - 4 

4.  UPDATE ON THE CURRENT COVID-19 SITUATION IN TRAFFORD   
 
To receive an update from the Consultant of Public Health. 
 

5 - 10 

5.  UNDERSTANDING THE MENTAL HEALTH IMPACT OF THE PANDEMIC   
 
To receive an update from the Consultant in Public Health. 
 

11 - 18 

6.  10 POINT PLAN UPDATE   
 

 

(a)   Mass Testing   
To receive a verbal update from a Consultant in Public Health 
 

 



Trafford Covid-19 Public Engagement Board - Wednesday, 30 June 2021 
   

 

 

(b)   Contact Tracing and Outbreak Management   
To receive a verbal update from a Consultant in Public Health and the 
Operations Manager, Health 
 

 

(c)   Mass Vaccination   
To receive a verbal update from the Deputy Medical Director, Trafford 
CCG 
 

 

(d)   Community Engagement   
To receive a verbal update from the Consultant in Public Health 
 

 

(e)   Community Enforcement   
To receive a verbal update from the Strategic Manager, Crime and 
Anti-Social Behaviour 
 

 

7.  PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT BOARD ACTIVITY   
 
For all Board Members to provide updates on any activity pertaining to the 
remit of the Board not covered anywhere else on the agenda 
 

 

8.  ANY OTHER BUSINESS   
 
To consider any other items of business not on the agenda which need to be 
considered by the Board before the next confirmed meeting. 
 

 

 
 
SARA TODD 
Chief Executive 
 
 
Membership of the Committee 
Council Leader or named Elected Member, nominated leads from opposition parties  
VCSE representatives – including specialists relating to key population groups (older 
people; BAME; children; mental health , Learning Difficulties), Partnerships lead, 
Communications lead, Director of Public Health, Director of Adult Social Services, 
Director for Children’s Services, Neighbourhood representatives, Clinical 
Commissioning Group representative, Trafford Local Care Organisation representative, 
Healthwatch Representative 
 
Further Information 
For help, advice and information about this meeting please contact: 
 
Fabiola Fuschi,  
Tel: 07813 397611 
Email:  Fabiola.fuschi@trafford.gov.uk  
 
This agenda was issued on 28th June 2021 by the Legal and Democratic Services 
Section, Trafford Council, Trafford Town Hall; Talbot Road, Stretford, Manchester, M32 
0TH  
 

mailto:Fabiola.fuschi@trafford.gov.uk


Trafford Covid-19 Public Engagement Board - Wednesday, 30 June 2021 
   

 

 

WEBCASTING 
  
This meeting will be filmed for live and / or subsequent broadcast on the Council’s 
website and / or YouTube channel https://www.youtube.com/user/traffordcouncil 
The whole of the meeting will be filmed, except where there are confidential or exempt 
items. 
 
If you make a representation to the meeting you will be deemed to have consented to 
being filmed. By entering the body of the Committee Room you are also consenting to 
being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings for 
webcasting and/or training purposes. If you do not wish to have your image captured or 
if you have any queries regarding webcasting of meetings, please contact the 
Democratic Services Officer on the above contact number or email 
democratic.services@trafford.gov.uk  
 
Members of the public may also film or record this meeting. Any person wishing to 
photograph, film or audio-record a public meeting is requested to inform Democratic 
Services in order that necessary arrangements can be made for the meeting. Please 
contact the Democratic Services Officer 48 hours in advance of the meeting if you 
intend to do this or have any other queries. 
 

https://www.youtube.com/user/traffordcouncil
mailto:democratic.services@trafford.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

Trafford Covid-19 Public Engagement Board  
 
 Wednesday 16th June 2021 – 10:00 a.m. – Virtual meeting   
 
Present:  
Councillor Freeman (Chair) Executive Member for Covid-19 Recovery and Reform   
Councillor Newgrosh 
Councillor Acton 
Councillor Lloyd  
Councillor Cordingley 
Councillor Welton 
Councillor Blackburn 

Leader of the Liberal Democrats Group, Trafford Council  
Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Trafford Council 
Member of the Health Scrutiny Committee, Trafford Council  
Member of the Health Scrutiny Committee, Trafford Council  
Ward Councillor, Green Party Group 
Shadow Executive Member for Health, Wellbeing, and Equalities  

Eleanor Roaf Director of Public Health, Trafford Council  
Khan Moghal Chair, Voice of BME Trafford 
George Devlin Lay Member for Patient and Public Participation, Trafford CCG 
Andrew Latham Chief Officer, HealthWatch Trafford 
Ben Wilmott 
Ellie Caddick 
Nigel Smith 
Rebecca Demaine 
Helen Gollins 
Kirsty Johnson 
Molly Shaw 

Covid-19 Senior Project Manager, Trafford Council 
Covid-19 Communications Lead, Trafford Council 
Head of Regulatory Services, Trafford Council 
Associate Director of Commissioning – Primary Care, Trafford CCG 
Consultant in Public Health, Trafford Council 
Covid-19 Project Manager, Trafford Council 
Governance Services, Trafford Council 

Alexander Murray Governance Officer, Trafford Council  
  
 

 Item Decision / Action Key Person for 
Action 
 

1. Welcome and 
apologies 
 

Apologies were noted from Helen Grant, Jilla Burgess-
Allen, Caroline Hemmingway, Joanne Gibson, Thomas 
Maloney, Michelle Hill, Sara Radcliffe, Shaun Donnellan, 
Councillor Chilton and Councillor Akinola. 
 

 
 
 

2. Minutes The minutes of the meeting 2nd June 2021 were agreed 
as an accurate record.  

 

3. Membership  There had been no changes to the Membership since 
the last meeting.   

 

4. Update on the 
current Covid-19 
situation in 
Trafford  

The Board agreed to note the update.  
 
The following messages were shared with the 
Board: 

1. The rates across Trafford and Greater 
Manchester are still rising; 

2. All 10 boroughs in Greater Manchester are in the 
top 20 highest rates in England; 

3. The rates in the older population are substantially 
lower than in the younger population but still 
worrying when compared with the vaccination 
figures; 

All 
 

Document Pack Page 1



 2 

4. The rates are highest in 17-21 year olds and 
younger people need to be aware of the 
significant risk of long Covid which is more 
prevalent in young people; 

5. Ensure to take additional care even if vaccinated 
by avoiding crowded places, keeping outdoors 
and tracking how many people you’re in contact 
with. 

 

5. National 
Announcement 
Regarding 
Covid-19 
Restrictions 

The Board agreed to note the update.  
 
The following messages were shared with the 
Board: 

1. Restrictions are continuing until 19th July; 
2. Manchester is going to be an “enhanced 

response area” with a 10 point plan from the 
Government covering areas that need additional 
support. 

 

 

6. Trafford’s 
Response to the 
Proposed 
Additional 
Support 
Interventions 

The Board agreed to note the update.  
 
The following messages were shared with the 
Board: 

1. Additional supplies of vaccination were requested 
by Greater Manchester but not provided; 

2. VSCE and voluntary involvement is highly 
important in delivering the enhanced response 
plan; 

3. The plan highlights the actions to take in order to 
increase vaccine uptake, increase 
communications, enhance community and 
workplace engagement and increase testing in 
schools. 

4. Recent activity surrounding the plan has included 
door knocking, vaccination clinics and testing; 

5. Upcoming activity includes advertising vans, 
ongoing checks on businesses and the launch of 
a self-isolation offer. 

 

 

7. 10POINT 
ACTION PLAN 

  

7a. Mass Testing  The Board agreed to note the update.  
The following messages were shared with the 
Board: 

1. That symptoms of the Delta variant are slightly 
different so it is important to get a PCR test if 
feeling unwell; 

2. Everyone needed to keep taking lateral flow tests 
regularly, especially if working in retail or 
hospitality; 

3. The importance of not retesting within 90 days of 

 
All 

Document Pack Page 2



 3 

a positive test to reduce false positives. 

7b. Contact Tracing 
and Outbreak 
Management 

The Board agreed to note the update.  
The following messages were shared with the 
Board: 

1. Contact tracing are asking more questions due to 
the Delta variant to gain more information on 
transmission; 

2. Coincidence data flows and common exposures 
data were enabling targeted reactive work to be 
carried out. 

 
 

 
All 

7c. Mass 
Vaccination  

The Board agreed to note the update.  
The following messages were shared with the 
Board: 

1. 75% of eligible people have received a first dose; 
2. Over 21s are now able to have their vaccine; 
3. There is a significant demand for the vaccine 

across the younger population; 
4. There is enough current stock to allow for a surge 

vaccination if necessary; 
5. There is still a hesitancy surrounding the 

AstraZeneca vaccine so communications are 
outlining that the risk of the AZ vaccine is lower 
than having Covid-19 itself; 

6. It may become mandatory to have the vaccine for 
care home staff. 
 

All  

7d. 
 

Update and 
escalations from 
the COVID-19 
Community 
Engagement 
Group 

The Board agreed to note the update.  
The following messages were shared with the 
Board: 

1. Door knocking had been taking place across the 
borough to capture concerns, give guidance and 
encourage vaccinations; 

2. That vaccine hesitancy had lowered and most 
people had been vaccinated; 

3. That non-compliance with self-isolation remains a 
concern across the borough; 

4. People are being encouraged to sign up as a 
Community Champion. 
 

 
N/A 
 

7e. Update and 
escalations from 
the Community 
Enforcement 
Group 

The Board agree to note the update 
The following messages were shared with the 
Board: 

1. That there had been a decrease in the number of 
residential complaints; 

2. That Environmental Health are continuing to carry 
out visits and give advice to businesses. 
 

 
N/A 

Document Pack Page 3



 4 

8. Public 
Engagement 
Board Activity 
and Feedback 

The Board agreed to use one meeting of the Public 
Engagement Board to discuss the impact of the 
pandemic on mental health and how we can improve 
people’s mental health. 

  

Eleanor Roaf 

9. Any Other 
Business  

None   

10. Date of Next 
Meeting 

Wednesday 30th June 2021 at 10:00am   
 
 

 

Document Pack Page 4



1 
 

Report to: Public Engagement Board  

Date: 30/06/2021 

Report of: COVID-19 Programme Team 

CLT Lead: Eleanor Roaf, Director Public Health Trafford  

Report Title: Data surveillance update paper to Public Engagement Board  

 

Report Summary:  

This paper provides an update on the current data position for COVID-19 within Trafford and provides 

comparative information with other GM localities. Data insights into any potential trends are provided based 

on best available public health information and intelligence available.  

 

Overview of the current position 

• There were 668 confirmed cases during the week of 17 June – 23 June, with the highest number of 

cases (116) on Friday 21st June. 

• Following on from last week’s increase in cases, we have seen a further rise in positive cases, as 

Trafford’s case 7-day case rate is at 281.4/100k (previously 235.5/100k for the 7 days up to June 16th).  

• Apart from Bury where rates are down slightly (-0.3%), rates are continuing to rise in each of the GM 

boroughs (as well as the majority of boroughs in the North West). Trafford currently has the 5th highest 

rate out of the 10 GM boroughs, our rates are 18th worst in England.   

• We are starting to see a steady increase in the number of people going for testing, although Trafford’s 

7-day testing rate is now above 500/100k. We continue to see an increase in Trafford’s positivity rate, 

rising to above 8%.  

• Case rates remain highest in Trafford’s 15-29 age group, increasing to a current rate of 657.1/100k from 

624.3/100k in the previous week. Rates are increasing most for 17-24 year olds and increasing for young 

people aged 11-16 years. Rates for the 11-16 year olds are up from 303/100k in the previous week to 

517/100k in the reported week. 

• For the rest of the adult population (25-59 year olds), cases are also increasing at the same rate and 

remain at or below the Trafford average.  

• Case rates remain lowest for residents 60 years and over (40.8/100k).  

• Rates have increased in all but 7 wards compared with the previous week. All wards, with the exception 

of Ashton upon Mersey, have rates over 200/100k.  

• Over 78% of all Trafford residents aged 18 years and above have received their first vaccine dose. The 

percentage of Trafford residents 18 years and above receiving both doses has risen above 57%.  

 

Along with the rest of Greater Manchester, we have seen a sharp increase in Trafford’s case rate since the 

beginning of June. The dominant strain of Covid now circulating in Trafford is the Delta variant, which is more 

infectious that the previous strain. Our 7-day case rate is 281.4/100k as of June 23rd.  

Document Pack Page 5



2 
 

The vaccination programme is progressing well as over 78% of Trafford residents aged 18 years and over 

have now been vaccinated, and over 57% of residents aged 18 years and over have received both 

vaccination doses. All cohort groups 1-9 have been offered their first dose vaccination, and over 90% have 

received their first dose vaccine. This still leaves a substantial number of people unvaccinated and we are 

striving to reach at least 95% in this group. Despite steady improvements, we are still seeing inequalities in 

vaccine uptake, with lower uptake in some of our more deprived areas and in some minority groups. We have 

seen rates of vaccination increase in the Asian/Asian British population in the North of the borough (with 

uptake now greater than in the White population); rates remain lower in our Black/Black British population. 

We anticipate that inequalities in uptake will widen as the vaccine is rolled out to younger age groups and we 

are taking steps to reduce this risk.  

 

The North of the borough remains our major area of concern both for endemic Covid and for serious illness 

following Covid. We are working with local community groups to increase uptake of vaccination.   

 

From a Public Health perspective, the recently announced delay is welcomed as even though the vaccination 

gives good protection, we still have large numbers of people who are still not vaccinated and so are at 

significant risk from Covid and long Covid.  This delay will allow the vaccination programme to make even 

more impact on transmission and illness. 

 

The increase in prevalence amongst our younger population is resulting in outbreaks in schools, early years.  

hospitality and leisure venues. The Outbreak Management and Contact Tracing Hub is working hard to 

ensure that transmission is minimised. The team is also working closely with business including those sited 

at the Trafford Centre.  

 

I would like to emphasise the need for residents to continue to limit their social contacts, maintain social 

distancing, work from home wherever possible, stay outdoors, and keep good hand and respiratory hygiene 

habits at all times. For contacts, it is incredibly important to isolate for the full 10 days, we are hearing of 

families who are allowing their children to play together when isolating, the risk of this is children incubating 

the infection at different times therefore introducing further spread into the community.   

 

We would strongly encourage all residents to take up the offer of vaccination as soon as they are eligible, 

and to remember the importance of the second dose in protecting themselves and others.  While Covid-19 is 

generally not as serious in younger people, long Covid can have a very significant impact, and vaccination 

protects against this too. 

 

 

Contact Officer: 

Name:  Tom Seery, Public Health Data Surveillance Analyst 

Email: Thomas.Seery@trafford.gov.uk 

Document Pack Page 6

mailto:Thomas.Seery@trafford.gov.uk


3 
 

1.0 Distribution of COVID-19 cases within Trafford 

 

1.1. Early December saw a gradual increase in cases, rising more sharply near the end of the month 

and going into early January. 

1.2. Trafford’s cases started to drop following the national lockdown. We then started to see case rates 

stall over a 14-day period in mid-late February. 

1.3. A drop in the number of daily cases during early March was followed by a 10-day period (March 21st 

– March 31st) where daily cases increased, increasing our 7-day case rate to greater than 70/100k 

on March 31st.  

1.4. April saw a steady flow of cases, reporting, on average, between 15-20 cases per day. 

1.5. We started to see volatility in our weekly rates in late April, going into May,,rates remained below a 

rate of 60/100k. Currently rates are 281.4k/100k. 

1.6. We have seen a sharp increase in positive cases for Trafford residents since June 1st – we are now 

averaging over 95 cases per day.   

 

Figure 1. Epidemic curve of daily confirmed new cases, Trafford, 02 March to 25 June 2021 

 

  

Source: PHE Covid-19 Situational Awareness explorer 

 

1.7. Case rates have increased for each of our age groups over the past two weeks. Rates have risen 

most for Trafford’s 15-29 age group, currently at 657.1/100k. We have also seen rates increase for 

residents aged 30-44 years (322.9/100k.  

1.8. Among Trafford’s 15-29 age group, rates are highest (and are continuing to rise) for residents aged 

17-24 years.  

1.9.  Although rates have increased slightly for residents aged 60 years and above (40.8/100k), rates are 

more stable than the rest of the Trafford population, and are well below the Trafford average.   

Document Pack Page 7



4 
 

1.10.  The most recent days are showing an increase in the number of positive cases for the school-age 

population, particularly young people aged 11-16 years. We have also started to experience more 

school outbreaks as pupils have started to return from the holiday period.  

 

Figure 2. Age-specific case rates per 100,000 (February 9th – June 23rd 2021) 

 

 

 

1.12.  Trafford’s ‘White’ ethnic group, as of week ending June 23, contribute to the highest number of cases 

(308), followed by the ‘Asian / Asian British’ ethnic group (48). 

 

Table 1. Case count and incidence per 100,000 population by ethnicity  Trafford, 17 June to 23 June 

2021 (Source: PHE Daily COVID-19 Surveillance Reports) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.0 Geographical spread of COVID-19 in Trafford 

 

2.1. Rates have increased in all but 7 wards compared with the previous week. All wards, with the 

exception of Ashton upon Mersey, have rates over 200/100k.  

                                       Cases in last 7 days 

Ethnic group N Per 100,000 

Other 24 1,090.9 

Asian / Asian British 44 244.8 

Mixed 23 381.4 

Black / Black British 30 458.7 

White 465 239.9 

Document Pack Page 8



5 
 

2.2.  Rates have increased in all but 4 wards compared with the previous week. There are 8 wards with a 

case rate greater than 200/100k.  

2.3.  Case rates are highest in St Mary’s 526.9/100k (central of the borough) and in Davyhulme West 

with rate of 400/100k. Localities with case rates over 300/100k are: Clifford, Bucklow-St. Martins, 

Bowden, Sale Moor and the Village.  

 

3.0 Testing in Trafford 

 

3.1. Over a 7 day period, ending June 23, the majority (96.6%) of COVID tests were conducted in our 

pillar 2 sites, consisting of all out-of-hospital testing sites. 23 cases were reported from pillar 1 sites.   

3.2. As of June 22nd, Trafford’s 7-day positivity rate sits at 8.1%, above the England average (3.4%). 

3.3. Figure 3 shows that Trafford’s testing rate has been increased over the past two weeks, (following a 

brief reduction in testing in late May). Trafford’s 7-day testing rate is above 500100k.  

 

Figure 3: Number of individuals tested for COVID-19 (overall and by pillar) among residents of 

Trafford (September 01 2020 to June 21st 2021) 4 most recent days are provisional - indicated by a grey 

background. 

 

 

  

 

4.0. Comparative data of COVID-19 cases within the local authorities of Greater Manchester 

 

4.1. As presented in figure 3, regional case rates dropped sharply in early February, continuing into 

March. 

4.2. Due to the low number of positive cases that were being reported throughout April, we started to 

see volatility in borough rates. However we did see a sharp increase in only Bolton’s case rate in 

mid-April, with their rates increasing above 400/100k into May. 

Document Pack Page 9



6 
 

4.3. Figure 4 shows a continued rate increase for each of the Greater Manchester boroughs (apart from 

Bolton who had experienced a steady reduction and Bury who experienced a slight decrease in the 

last 7 days). As of June 24th, each borough has a rate above 230/100k, which is well above the 

England average (114.9/100k).  

 

 

Figure 4. Weekly incidence per 100,000 population by local authority, Greater Manchester, 03 April to 

24 June 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Document Pack Page 10



PEB paper on Mental Health – June 2021 
Jilla Burgess-Allen, Consultant in Public Health 

Contents 
How has covid impacted people’s mental health and wellbeing in Trafford? ....................................... 1 

What can people do to promote their mental wellbeing? ..................................................................... 1 

Promoting public mental health ............................................................................................................. 3 

Asking for help ........................................................................................................................................ 5 

 

 

How has covid impacted people’s mental health and wellbeing in 

Trafford? 
The Covid-19 pandemic has had a profound effect on all our mental health. While most of us will 

emerge without lasting negative effects on our mental health, some communities and people with 

specific characteristics are at far greater risk of worsening mental health. These include: those living 

in poverty, poor quality housing or with precarious or no employment; those living with an existing 

mental health problem, including addiction to drugs, alcohol or gambling; older people who are 

more likely be bereaved by Covid-19 and may be at greater risk of social isolation; women and 

children exposed to violence and trauma at home; people with long-term health conditions; people 

with logn COVID; and people from black and minority communities where prevalence of Covid-19 is 

higher and outcomes are worse. 

It is becoming clear that the impact of Covid-19 on mental health and wellbeing will be felt for years 

to come and the ramifications are likely to be pervasive and long-lasting. 

More people are now in contact with mental health services than ever previously recorded, and in a 

survey to measure the impact of COVID-19, 45% of Trafford residents reported high levels of anxiety. 

Sadly, we have also seen a marked increase in suicides in Trafford over the last year compared to the 

year before. 

What can people do to promote their mental wellbeing? 
There is no health without mental health - it is a positive resource that allows us to fulfil our 

potential, cope with the normal stresses of life, work productively, and contribute to our 

community. 

The 5 ways to wellbeing are simple and proven actions that we can all take to find balance, build 

resilience and boost our mental health and wellbeing. They are: 

1. Connect 

There is strong evidence that indicates that feeling close to, and valued by, other people is a 

fundamental human need and one that contributes to functioning well in the world. 

It’s clear that social relationships are critical for promoting wellbeing and for acting as a buffer 

against mental ill health for people of all ages. 

Document Pack Page 11



A few ideas for making a connection: 

 Talk to someone instead of sending an email 

 Speak to someone new 

 Ask how someone’s weekend was and really listen when they tell you 

 Put five minutes aside to find out how someone really is 

 

2. Be active 

Regular physical activity is associated with lower rates of depression and anxiety across all 

age groups. Exercise is essential for slowing age-related cognitive decline and for promoting 

well-being. 

 

But it doesn’t need to be particularly intense for you to feel good - slower-paced activities, 

such as walking, can have the benefit of encouraging social interactions as well providing 

some level of exercise. 

 

Here are a few ideas: 

 

Take the stairs not the lift 

Go for a walk at lunchtime, perhaps with a friend or colleague so you can connect too 

Get off the bus one stop earlier than usual and walk the final part of your journey 

Do some ‘easy exercise’, like stretching, before you start your working day 

 

3. Take notice 

 

Reminding yourself to ‘take notice’ can strengthen and broaden awareness. Studies have 

shown that being aware of what is taking place in the present directly enhances your well-

being and savouring ‘the moment’ can help to reaffirm your life priorities. 

 

Heightened awareness also enhances your self-understanding and allows you to make 

positive choices based on your own values and motivations. 

 

Take some time to enjoy the moment and the environment around you. Here are a few 

ideas: 

 

Get a plant for your workspace 

Have a ‘clear the clutter’ day 

Take notice of how your colleagues are feeling or acting 

Take a different walking or cycling route on one of your regular journeys 

Visit a new place for lunch 

 

4. Learn 

 

Continued learning through life enhances self-esteem and encourages social interaction and 

a more active life. Evidence suggests that the opportunity to engage in work or educational 

activities particularly helps to lift older people out of depression. 

 

Document Pack Page 12



The practice of setting goals, which is related to adult learning in particular, has been 

strongly associated with higher levels of wellbeing. 

 

Here are a few learning ideas: 

 

Find out something about your colleagues 

Sign up for a class 

Read the news or a book 

Set up a book club 

Do a crossword or Sudoku 

Research something you’ve always wondered about 

Learn a new word 

 

5. Give 

 

Participation in social and community life has attracted a lot of attention in the field of 

wellbeing research. People who report a greater interest in helping others are more likely to 

rate themselves as happy. 

 

Research suggests that acts of giving and kindness can help improve our mental wellbeing 

by: 

 

o creating positive feelings and a sense of reward 

o giving you a feeling of purpose and self-worth 

o helping you connect with other people 

 

It could be small acts of kindness towards other people, or larger ones like volunteering in 

your local community. Some examples of the things to try include: 

 

 saying thank you to someone for something they have done for you 

 spending time with friends or relatives who need support or company 

 offering to help someone you know with DIY or a work project 

 volunteering in your community, such as helping at a school, hospital or care home 

 

Promoting public mental health 
The most important protective factors for mental health and the most important determinants of 

mental wellbeing lie in the family, the environment, the community and the society we live in. 

Engagement, both community and individual is central to public mental health. At a community level 

this is about building on assets and involving communities in framing the issues and the solutions, 

and at the individual level it’s about developing individual strengths and resilience. 

Wellbeing at work 

Working with local employers to be inclusive, to tackle stigma, and to support the wellbeing of their 

workforce through appropriate working hours; time for a proper break; flexible working; 

compassionate management; staff networks etc. can transform the mental health and wellbeing of 

those Trafford residents who are in employment. 

Document Pack Page 13



One of the unintended consequences of the pandemic is that many of us not on the frontline are 

now working from home. This has its benefits – we are able to stay safe, have reduced travel times 

to our places of work, and are able to work with less distractions. However, many of us are missing 

the connection and support of our colleagues, are less physically active during the working day, and 

find ourselves working harder and longer as the lines between home and work become blurred.  

We are also less likely to feel connected with work developments around us, and unable to see the 

pressures our colleagues are under when not in physical contact on a regular basis.  

Here is a guide to working well remotely: from the way that you set your space up and the seat you 

sit on; to the need to set reasonable work/rest boundaries. It is important to try and create and 

maintain a routine and schedule with designated spaces to work, where possible. It is also 

recommended to schedule regular breaks – whether it’s to grab a glass of water or go for a short 

walk and get some fresh air. 

 

Building community resilience 

Trafford is developing a community based working model with a network of six community hubs, 

with a consistent information and advice offer across the borough. The hubs are evolving to support 

their local communities to flourish as we emerge from covid restrictions – helping reduce loneliness 

and social isolation, providing advice through links with CAB, helping people with employment and 

to develop their skills, and also raising awareness and skills in understanding mental health and 

being able to help people who are struggling, whether this is listening or signposting on to other 

services. This involves three levels of mental health training: 

Level1 – Universal training offer - Shining a Light on Suicide – using GM materials – creating an 

awareness campaign with a very light touch training offer using existing GM training course. Aimed 

at both workforce and residents 

Level 2 – Community training offer - making every contact count – looking to increase skills in the 

social prescribing workforce – using a train the trainer model – increased understanding of not just 

mental health but other aspects to – this evidence based approach to improving people’s health and 

wellbeing by changing their behaviour.  

Level 3 – enhanced awareness and support - mental health first aid training – looking to develop a 

Trafford Based organisation that would be willing to have people trained in MHFA and be able to 

deliver to the workforce across Trafford – this would be aimed at VCFSE, businesses, any 

organisation that wanted to have mental health first aiders to support their workforce – in Trafford. 

Trafford also has social prescribing link workers based across the system in adult social care, primary 

care, secondary care and the VCFSE sector. A survey in late 2020 asked social prescribers how their 

work supported people’s mental health and wellbeing, and this estimated that around 75% of all 

referrals to link workers had mental health and wellbeing as all or part of the referral reason.  

Link workers were invited via the GMHSCP to take part in an RSPH pilot to become trainers, 

delivering Making Every Contact Count for Mental Health (MECC for MH) training for colleagues, 

partners, and volunteers. The aim of this was to increase skills and confidence around mental health 

for both link workers and for the wider workforce (both paid and volunteers) who might provide 

services or activities for people who were struggling with mental health or wellbeing. There are now 

Document Pack Page 14

https://www.gmworkforcefutures.org.uk/covid-19/toolkits-and-guidance/


four link workers undergoing training to become MECC for MH trainers, and plans to expand this 

further over the next 6-12 months.  

 

Asking for help 
It is important those communities, families, groups and individuals we know are being hardest hit 

can be supported now and as future ramifications of the pandemic occur. 

The pandemic has been a challenging time for us all. That’s why it’s crucial that we are open and 

honest about the pressures and demands we are facing and know when we may need some support 

ourselves.  

Here are some of the signs to pay attention to:  

• high levels of distress 

• inability to focus at work or home or unable to perform daily activities 

• significantly increased your use of alcohol and/or substances 

• those around you very worried about you 

• worry about ability to keep oneself safe 

We may recognise and experience some of these at some points and that can be fine from time to 

time. However, when they become more regular, or when it feels harder to get through the day to 

day challenges, that’s when it could be time to ask for help. 

 

Mental Health Support Services: 

GMMH free 24 hour Helpline is available for the general public by calling 0800 953 0285 (this service 

can also be accessed via 111). 

Community Mental Health Team: If a person is already open to the CMHT they can contact the 

teams directly on either: 0161 358 1390 (North & West Trafford, Older Adults and Early Intervention 

Service) or 0161 357 1340 (South Trafford) between the hours of 9 am and 5 pm 7 days a week. 

Outside of these hours, contact the 24 hour helpline above.  

 

In an emergency 

If you are concerned about an immediate risk of harm - either to yourself or someone else - phone 

999. If it is not an emergency but you require urgent advice, call 101 for non-emergency access to 

the police or NHS 111. Visit your local Accident & Emergency department if you need urgent physical 

health care or an urgent mental health assessment. 

 

Trafford Psychological Therapies Services offer talking therapy (counselling, cognitive behavioural 

therapy (CBT) or psychology) for anyone over the age of 16 years old, who has a Trafford GP and 

may be struggling with a common mental health problem (Anxiety, Low Mood, Worry, Stress, Sleep, 

Document Pack Page 15



Phobia, OCD, Trauma, etc.)  Access is via GP referral or self-referral via: 

https://www.gmmh.nhs.uk/tpt/ or by calling Trafford Psychological Therapies on: 0161 357 1350. 

Self Help Services provide e-therapy (online interactive CBT-based support for common mental 

health problems and also for sleep problems) as part of the Trafford Psychological Therapies 

pathway. Patients can make a self-referral to SHS if e-therapy is preferred. 

https://www.selfhelpservices.org.uk/service/trafford-etherapy-service-2/ 

Primary Care Mental Health Wellbeing Service offers more specialist clinical input as well as 

bespoke social prescribing and wellbeing support for those with more complex psycho-social 

circumstances. Please call 0161 271 0919 or email pcmhw.admin@gmmh.nhs.uk. The service is open 

between 09:00 and 17:00 Monday to Friday. There is a voice message facility for outside of office 

hours. 

Bluesci Wellbeing Support Line: Call 0161 912 2177 between 10:00 – 14:00 (this is a local rate call 

and Bluesci will ring callers straight back). Email: enquiries@bluesci.org.uk   

For further information about the four Bluesci Library and Wellbeing Centres visit:  

https://oldtraffordwellbeing.org.uk/news/corona-virus/ 

Bluesci is also offering wellbeing support over the phone to our Urdu speaking community every 

Tuesday between 10 am to 4 pm. Please ring or text Aliya Bukhari on 07547 548 101, and the call will 

be returned as soon as possible.  

Men’s Support Group in Trafford aims to support the wellbeing of men who are struggling. The 

group meet weekly to talk about things that are affecting them, provide support and teach strategies 

to deal with issues faced. No referral necessary. Old Trafford Wellbeing Centre, 54-56 Seymour 

Grove, Manchester, M16 0LN.  Currently meeting on Zoom: Monday 18:30, Thursday 15:30 and 

Sunday 12:30. Contact 07894 971 434 hello@directionsformen.org.uk 

 People with Autism or Learning Disabilities 

Respect for All Helpline: 0161 532 4075 

Our trained counsellors will listen and advise every caller. We can provide a follow up service for a 

limited time, for those who need more help than one phone call can provide. We can also refer 

onwards to other organisations who might be able to offer practical help. 

Check the website for opening times and further information: 

https://www.respectforall.org.uk/counselling/helpline 

There is an answer phone available 24 hours a day. Please leave a message, and someone will call 

you back at a convenient time for you. 

Carers:    

Trafford Carers Centre offers a range of information, support and resources via phone 0161 848 

2400 or https://www.traffordcarerscentre.org.uk/  

Age UK Trafford Dementia and Memory Loss Advisory Service for people living with dementia or 

memory loss and their carers: telephone 0161 746 9754.  https://www.ageuk.org.uk/trafford/  

Document Pack Page 16

https://www.gmmh.nhs.uk/tpt/
https://www.selfhelpservices.org.uk/service/trafford-etherapy-service-2/
mailto:pcmhw.admin@gmmh.nhs.uk
mailto:enquiries@bluesci.org.uk
mailto:hello@directionsformen.org.uk
https://www.respectforall.org.uk/counselling/helpline
https://www.traffordcarerscentre.org.uk/
https://www.ageuk.org.uk/trafford/


Trafford Domestic Abuse Service (TDAS) Please call or text TDAS on 07534 066 029. Leave your 

name and number if it safe for you to do so.  A member of the team will get back to you. In case of 

an emergency please dial 999.   https://www.tdas.org.uk/ 

Trafford Rape Crisis Helpline number: 0800 783 4608.  

If you would prefer to speak to a BME woman: Helpline number: 0800 434 6484.  

Email: dorothytrc@hotmail.co.uk. If you’d prefer to email a BME woman:   

dorothy.bme@hotmail.co.uk.  See website for further details: https://traffordrapecrisis.com/ 

 

Veterans 

If you are a serving or ex-serving member of the military or a family member and require some 

help or information, please contact Sue Wright Phone: 0161 912 1173 Mobile: 07980 965 635 

Email: sue.wright@trafford.gov.uk 

Councillor Judith Lloyd Phone: 0161 865 8946 Mobile: 07545 921015Email: 

judith.lloyd@trafford.gov.uk   

 

Trafford Veterans 

Provide peer support activities to armed forces and emergency service veterans, their families and 

members of the local community. All of activities are run by volunteers who share their hobbies 

and skills to help others 

https://www.neighbourly.com/TraffordVeteransUK 

 

Trafford Community Response Hubs: If you live alone, are struggling to make ends meet, are self-

isolating or generally in need of advice or support please contact 0300 330 9073 (8.30am to 5.30pm, 

Monday to Friday).  

https://www.trafford.gov.uk/residents/community/partnerships-and-communities/Coronavirus-

Covid-19-Trafford-Community-Response.aspx 

Digital Support Offer: 

Shout offer support in a crisis through a 24/7 text messaging service. Just need to Text GM to 85258. 

It’s confidential and anonymous with no registration required.   

Living Life to the Full offers online courses for people affected by low mood, anxiety or depression 

using cognitive behavioural therapy concepts. Materials have been designed to boost individual’s 

ability to live well by improving feelings and beating stress. Available online and totally free of 

charge for Greater Manchester residents. Instant access to self-help support: 

hub.gmhsc.org.uk/mental-health/living-life-to-the-full 

SilverCloud provide online programmes for adults (aged 16 years+) to help ease levels of stress, 

sleep better or to build resilience. They are self-help, confidential and secure. Instant access to self-

help support: GM.silvercloudhealth.com/signupWellbeing Advice & National Helplines: 

Document Pack Page 17

https://www.tdas.org.uk/
mailto:dorothytrc@hotmail.co.uk
mailto:dorothy.bme@hotmail.co.uk
https://traffordrapecrisis.com/
mailto:sue.wright@trafford.gov.uk
mailto:judith.lloyd@trafford.gov.uk
https://www.neighbourly.com/TraffordVeteransUK
https://www.trafford.gov.uk/residents/community/partnerships-and-communities/Coronavirus-Covid-19-Trafford-Community-Response.aspx
https://www.trafford.gov.uk/residents/community/partnerships-and-communities/Coronavirus-Covid-19-Trafford-Community-Response.aspx


Information about local mental health and wellbeing services here 

https://hub.gmhsc.org.uk/mental-health/in-your-area/ 

NHS Every mind Matters: www.nhs.uk/oneyou/every-mind-matters 

Samaritans: 116 123 (free 24-hour helpline) if people are feeling stressed/anxious.  

Mind: 0300 123 3393 Self-help support to cope with anxiety and stress (www.mind.org.uk) 

No Panic: 0844967 4848 Anxiety support/self-help relaxation techniques (www.nopanic.or.uk) 

Anxiety UK: 03444 775774 (Manchester–based national charity to support people living with 

anxiety, phobias and OCD and whose anxiety may have increased during the pandemic). During the 

coronavirus pandemic, we will be extending our helpline hours to provide additional support in the 

evenings Mon-Fri 9.30am -10pm and over the weekend between 10am -8pm so that we can offer 

support to as many people as possible who need our help.  

https://www.anxietyuk.org.uk/coronanxiety-support-resources/  

 

Bereavement Services: 

Greater Manchester Bereavement Service – For bereavement support or advice, call the Greater 

Manchester Bereavement Service on 0161 983 0902 or visit www.greater-manchester-bereavement-

service.org.uk  

Greater Manchester Suicide Bereavement Information Service: A confidential information service 

for people bereaved or affected by suicide. The impact of bereavement through suicide is 

devastating – for family – for friends – for the community. The Suicide Bereavement Information 

Service has been set up to help answer your questions – whether it is seeking advice on immediate 

issues that need addressing or making you aware of ongoing support services. 

Please contact: 0161 983 0700. Alternatively contact via email on: SB.IS@nhs.net 

Our telephone line is open Monday to Friday 10am – 4pm excluding Bank holiday. 

This confidential service is for people living in: Bolton – Bury – Manchester – Oldham – Rochdale – 

Salford – Stockport – Tameside – Trafford – Wigan 

 

Information & Resources for Support After Suicide: 

Support After Suicide: https://supportaftersuicide.org.uk/support-guides/help-is-at-hand/ 

Shining a Light on Suicide: http://www.shiningalightonsuicide.org.uk/ 

 

 

 

Document Pack Page 18

https://hub.gmhsc.org.uk/mental-health/in-your-area/
http://www.mind.org.uk/
http://www.nopanic.or.uk/
http://www.greater-manchester-bereavement-service.org.uk/
http://www.greater-manchester-bereavement-service.org.uk/
tel:+4401619830700
mailto:SB.IS@nhs.net
https://supportaftersuicide.org.uk/support-guides/help-is-at-hand/
http://www.shiningalightonsuicide.org.uk/

	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	4 UPDATE ON THE CURRENT COVID-19 SITUATION IN TRAFFORD
	5 UNDERSTANDING THE MENTAL HEALTH IMPACT OF THE PANDEMIC

